
From: Maria@qai-inc.com on behalf of DeVincenzo Maria
To: jim whitehurst@shamrockfoods.com
Cc: NOPACAAdverseActions; Schmale  Valerie; lynne@qai-inc.com
Subject: (R)egistered: Proposed Suspension - Shamrock Farms Co.
Date: Friday, January 08, 2010 1:08:55 PM
Attachments: M  Shamrock Farms PS 010810 pdf

USDA Appeals Process.pdf

*** (R)egistered E-mail  ***

This is a Registered E-mail® message from DeVincenzo Maria.

Please see the attached correspondence regarding your organic certification.

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

For more information about the RPost® Registered E-mail® service visit http://www.rpost.com
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Appeals Process:
Certified Organic Operations or Certification Applicants 

The National Organic Program (NOP), 
accredited certifying agents, and State Organic 
Programs (SOPs), where applicable, have a 
responsibility to work cooperatively with 
certified organic operations or applicants for 
certification to identify problem areas and 
resolve issues of alleged noncompliance long 
before a decision to revoke, suspend, or deny 
certification is made. 

However, if these efforts fail, and you are 
notified of a decision with which you don’t 
agree, you have the right to appeal that decision. 

Part I of this brochure explains the appeals 
procedure if your organic operation is located in 
a State without a USDA-approved SOP. Part II 
explains the process that must be used in a State 
with a USDA-approved SOP. Part III explains 
the process that must be used when an adverse 
action is initiated by the NOP Manager. 

In all of these cases, your appeal will not be 
reviewed, heard, or decided by anyone involved 
in making the decision being appealed. USDA or 
the SOP will send all communications involved 
in the appeals process to your place of business, 
using a delivery service that provides dated 
return receipts. You must also use a delivery 
service that provides dated return receipts. 

Part I. Appeals in States with No SOP 

How much time do I have to appeal? 

You must appeal within 30 days of receiving the 
decision letter, or within the time frame specified 
in that letter—whichever is later. Unless you 
appeal on time, the decision to deny, revoke, or 
suspend your certification will become final. 

What should I put in my appeal? 

You must include the following information in 
your appeal: 

a copy of the decision you are 
appealing; and 

a statement of your reasons for 
believing that the decision was not 
proper or did not follow National 
Organic Program regulations, policies, 
or procedures. 

Who will make the decision on my appeal? 

The Administrator of the Agricultural Marketing 
Service will review the information you put in 
your appeal and make a decision on whether to 
sustain or deny your appeal. 

Where do I send my appeal? 

Administrator, USDA, AMS 
c/o NOP Appeals Team
STOP 0203, Room 1114-S
1400 Independence Ave., SW 
Washington, DC 20250 

What happens if I win? 

If the Administrator sustains your appeal, you 
will be granted certification, or if the decision 
was for revocation or suspension, you will be 
notified that your certification will continue. 



What happens if I lose? 

If the Administrator denies your appeal, you will 
be notified that a formal proceeding to deny, 
suspend, or revoke your certification is being 
initiated. An Administrative Law Judge will 
handle this proceeding. Your notification letter 
from the Administrator will contain instructions 
on what to do next, if you are not satisfied with 
the decision. 

If I want to appeal further, what do I do? 

There are two more levels of appeal within 
USDA, an Administrative Law Judge, and then a 
Judicial Officer. You will be notified at every 
step of exactly what do, should you wish to 
appeal to a higher level. Appeals at these two 
levels will be heard as near as possible to your 
place of business or residence. 

I’ve lost my appeal at the highest level of 
USDA—what next? 

You may appeal the decision of the USDA 
Judicial Officer to the U.S. District Court for the 
district in which you are located. 

Part II. Appeals in a State with an SOP 

Included in USDA’s requirements for approving 
a State Organic Program, is the approval of the 
SOP’s appeal procedures. An SOP’s appeal 
procedures must be equivalent to those provided 
for under the National Organic Program, as 
described in Part I. The following appeals 
procedures apply to decisions made by State 
Organic Programs or accredited certifying 
agents. 

How long do I have to appeal? 

You must appeal within 30 days of receiving the 
notification letter, or within the time frame 
specified in that letter—whichever is later. 
Unless you appeal on time, the decision to deny, 
revoke, or suspend your certification will 
become final. 

What should I put in my appeal? 

You must include the following information in 
your appeal: 

a copy of the decision you are 
appealing; and 

a statement of your reasons for 
believing that the decision was not 
proper or did not follow National 
Organic Program regulations, policies, 
or procedures. 

Where and to whom do I send my appeal? 

You must send your appeal to your State Organic 
Program. Your notification letter will provide 
exact instructions. 

What happens if I win? 

If your appeal is sustained, you will be granted 
certification, or if the original decision was for 
revocation or suspension, you will be notified 
that your certification will continue. 

What happens if I lose? 

If the State Organic Program denies your appeal, 
you will be notified of the next step you may 
take in the State appeals process. 

I’ve lost my appeal at the highest level of 
the State appeals process—what next? 

You may appeal the final decision of the State to 
the U.S. District Court for the district in which 
you are located. 

Part III. Appeals of Adverse Actions 
Initiated by NOP Manager 

Follow the procedures provided in Part I. 

************************************ 

Where can I find more information on the 
appeals process? 

Subpart G, Administrative, sections 205.680 and 
205.681 of the NOP regulations cover the 
“Adverse Actions Appeal Process.” Further 
discussion of this process can be found in the 
preamble to the NOP regulations. 
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Schmale, Valerie

From: Guo, Ruihong
Sent: Friday, February 13, 2009 11:14 AM
To: kastel@cornucopia.org
Cc: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Rockview/Shamrock complaints

Mr. Kastel:

We have yet to receive the additional information requested in November 2008. Supporting information would help
substantiate allegations of noncompliance. Please provide this information to us at your earliest convenience.

I do not recall receiving a phone message from you. Nonetheless, I’d be happy to discuss the matter with you. I will be
on travel the next week or so. Maybe we could talk the first week of March.

Thanks,
Ruihong Guo

Chief
Compliance & Enforcement Branch
NOP

From: kastel@cornucopia.org [mailto:kastel@cornucopia.org]  
Sent: Friday, February 13, 2009 11:00 AM 
To: Guo, Ruihong 
Subject: Rockview/Shamrock complaints 

Dear Ms, Ruihong, 

When we last corresponded in November I had let you know that an extremely heavy travel schedule 
in the fall would prevent me from responding to your request for additional information regarding the 
Shamrock and Rockview complaints in a timely manner. 

I am disappointed that when I left you a phone message, in December, stating that I would like to 
discuss the parameters of our collaboration on these complaints, that I never have received a 
response.

I would still like to discuss this matter with you. 

Sincerely yours, 

Mark A. Kastel 
Codirector 
The Cornucopia Institute 

Mark A. Kastel
The Cornucopia Institute
kastel@cornucopia.org
608-625-2042 Voice
866-861-2214 Fax
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P.O. Box 126
Cornucopia, Wisconsin 54827

www.cornucopia.org



From: Maria@qai-inc.com
To: Robinson  Barbara -AMS
Cc: Schmale  Valerie; Guo  Ruihong; Bradley  Mark
Subject: )egistered:
Date: Friday, November 14, 2008 4:58:13 PM
Attachments: ATTACHMENT.TXT

111408 req to USDA.pdf

*** (R)egistered E-mail  ***

This is a Registered E-mail® message from DeVincenzo Maria.

Dear Ms. Robinson,
Please see the attached letter requesting the evidence stated by Cornucopia in the October 12, 2008
 letter that they are willing to share with our investigators.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

Maria
Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 792-3531 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

For more information about the RPost® Registered E-mail® service visit http://www.rpost.com





From: Maria@qai-inc.com on behalf of DeVincenzo Maria
To: jim whitehurst@shamrockfoods.com
Cc: NOPACAAdverseActions; Schmale  Valerie; john@qai-inc.com;
Subject: (R)egistered:
Date: Friday, February 05, 2010 1:15:49 PM
Attachments: 020510 Letter to Shamrock Farms pdf

USDA Appeals Process.pdf

*** (R)egistered E-mail  ***

This is a Registered E-mail® message from DeVincenzo Maria.

Dear Jim,

Please see the attached letter regarding your response to the January 8, 2010, Combined Notice of
 Noncompliance and Proposed Suspension.

Regards,

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

For more information about the RPost® Registered E-mail® service visit http://www.rpost.com
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Schmale, Valerie

From: Schmale, Valerie
Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2010 10:29 AM
To: 'Grealy, Stephen'; Guo, Ruihong
Cc: 'Walden, Jessica'; 'DeVincenzo, Maria'; 'bowen@nsf.org%inter2'; Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock Inspection timelines
Attachments: Schmale   Valerie.vcf

Importance: High

Hi Jackie, Jessica, Maria, and Stephen: 

It was a pleasure speaking with all of you this morning regarding the issue of Shamrock. 

Just to reiterate the major points of the conversation for the record: 

1. Established that Shamrock has not had sufficient quality and quantity of organic pasture from 
initial certification. 

2. Established that QAI, although meeting the annual inspection requirements of the NOP 
regulations, has not followed up appropriately on noncompliance issues with Shamrock.  QAI 
provided an Inspection Timeline document laying out the inspection cycle 

3. Established that QAI will work on a settlement agreement with Shamrock whereby Shamrock will 
be suspended until such time as noncompliances are corrected satisfactorily to achieve compliance 
with NOP regulations 

4. Stephen has discussed  issues with Shamrock 
5. Shamrock must submit an adjusted OSP for the organic dairy operation and follow it 
6. Established that Shamrock is working to meet the requirements of the newly published pasture 

rule; although this is taking place, it does not preclude the fact that Shamrock was noncompliant 
up to this point, thus QAI is standing firm on the suspension until issues are corrected 

7. QAI has implemented  to prevent future issues with follow-up of 
noncompliance issues of certified operations 

8. QAI will contact the NOP within two weeks with an update of the status of the mediation 
agreement with Shamrock 

We look forward to speaking with you again. 

Sincerely, 
Val Schmale 

From: Grealy, Stephen [mailto:Grealy@qai-inc.com]
Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2010 8:30 AM 
To: Schmale, Valerie; Guo, Ruihong 

(b)(4)

(b)(4)



2

Cc: Walden, Jessica; DeVincenzo, Maria 
Subject: FW: Shamrock Inspection timelines 

Hi Valerie, Ruihong 
We are sending you the inspection timelines for you to have on the call 
Thanks – talk soon 
Stephen 

From: DeVincenzo, Maria  
Sent: Wednesday, February 17, 2010 3:53 PM 
To: Grealy, Stephen; Walden, Jessica; Bowen, Jaclyn 
Subject: Shamrock Inspection timelines

Here is a copy of the inspection timelines done for Shamrock Farms that we may want to have handy 
for the meeting tomorrow morning.

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com
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Schmale, Valerie

From: Guo, Ruihong
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2009 12:22 PM
To: Schmale, Valerie
Cc: Wilburn, Tammie
Subject: FW: Rockview/Shamrock complaints
Attachments: image001.jpg

From: kastel@cornucopia.org [mailto:kastel@cornucopia.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2009 4:31 PM 
To: Guo, Ruihong 
Cc: wfantle@cornucopia.org 
Subject: RE: Rockview/Shamrock complaints 

Dear Ruihong, 

As per your request I am sending you this e-mail to confirm our interest in expediting a full 
investigation of the allegations set forth in our formal complaints pursuant to Shamrock Farms and 
Rockview Farms. 

As I have stated in addition to documentary evidence, including photographs, the preponderance of 
information we can convey your staff, concerning alleged violations at these facilities, would be put 
forth in testimony I am willing to give under oath. 

I visited both of these facilities in the spring of 2008 and observed what appeared to be gross 
violations of the federal regulations governing organic production. 

Please let me know when you are ready to commence this investigation and I will make myself 
available. 

I understand that you are short on staff.  But I would ask that you expedite this, at this point, since it is 
been some time since we filed these complaints and many months have gone by since we attempted 
to meet with you to discuss your procedural/ investigative approach. 

Sincerely yours, 

Mark 

PS: Because of our communications difficulties I would appreciate it if you would click back to confirm 
the receipt of this message. 

Mark A. Kastel
The Cornucopia Institute
kastel@cornucopia.org
608-625-2042 Voice
866-861-2214 Fax
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P.O. Box 126
Cornucopia, Wisconsin 54827

www.cornucopia.org

From: Mark A. Kastel - The Cornucopia Institute [mailto:kastel@cornucopia.org]  
Sent: Friday, February 13, 2009 9:59 AM 
To: Ruihong Guo - NOP Compliance (ruihong.guo@usda.gov) 
Subject: Rockview/Shamrock complaints

Dear Ms, Ruihong, 

When we last corresponded in November I had let you know that an extremely heavy travel schedule 
in the fall would prevent me from responding to your request for additional information regarding the 
Shamrock and Rockview complaints in a timely manner. 

I am disappointed that when I left you a phone message, in December, stating that I would like to 
discuss the parameters of our collaboration on these complaints, that I never have received a 
response.

I would still like to discuss this matter with you. 

Sincerely yours, 

Mark A. Kastel 
Codirector 
The Cornucopia Institute 

Mark A. Kastel
The Cornucopia Institute
kastel@cornucopia.org
608-625-2042 Voice
866-861-2214 Fax
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P.O. Box 126
Cornucopia, Wisconsin 54827

www.cornucopia.org
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Schmale, Valerie

From: DeVincenzo, Maria [Maria@qai-inc.com]
Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2010 7:47 PM
To: Guo, Ruihong; Schmale, Valerie
Cc:
Subject: Shamrock 2008 & 2009 Pasture Logs
Attachments: 2008 Shamrock Farms - Pasture Log.pdf; 2009 Shamrock Farms - Pasture Log.pdf; 

Shamrock Farms - Pasture SOP.pdf; Shamrock Heat Explanation doc.pdf

Good Afternoon,

Attached you will find the Shamrock SOP, an explanation as to the impact extreme heat has 
on cows, the 2008 Pasture Log, and the 2009 Pasture log.

Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Regards,

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

Privacy Warning: This e-mail is the property of Quality Assurance International (QAI), a division of NSF International. It is intended 
only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise 
protected from disclosure. Distribution or copying of this email, or the information contained herein to anyone other than the 
intended recipient is prohibited. It you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by e-mail at the 
address from which it has been sent. Please delete and destroy any copies of this e-mail. 

(b)(6)















































































United States Agricultural 1400 Independence Ave, SW
Department of Marketing Room 4003, STOP 0268
Agriculture Service Washington, DC  20250-0268

October 21, 2008

Joe Smillie
Senior Vice President
Quality Assurance International
9191 Town Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, California 92122

Dear Mr. Smillie:

We have received a complaint alleging that Quality Assurance International (QAI)-certified 
Shamrock Farms Dairy Division is violating 7 CFR 205.237(a); 205.238(a)(3) and (4); and 
205.239(a)(1)and (2) and (b)(1)(2)(3) and (4).

We are requesting that you please investigate this issue and respond to us with your findings by 
November 27, 2008; also, if applicable, please provide us a description of corrective action and 
timeline for implementation.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, you may contact Ruihong Guo at 202-
720-3252 or Ruihong.Guo@usda.gov.

Sincerely,

Barbara C. Robinson 
Acting Director
National Organic Program

cc: NOPC-003-09
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Schmale, Valerie

From: Guo, Ruihong
Sent: Wednesday, November 05, 2008 8:30 AM
To: kastel@cornucopia.org
Cc: wfantle@cornucopia.org%inter2; Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock/Rockview investigations

Mr. Kastel:

We look forward to hearing from you.

Thanks,
Ruihong Guo

P.S. I am a “Ms”

From: kastel@cornucopia.org [mailto:kastel@cornucopia.org]  
Sent: Monday, November 03, 2008 4:41 PM 
To: Guo, Ruihong 
Cc: wfantle@cornucopia.org%inter2 
Subject: Shamrock/Rockview investigations 

Dear Mr. Ruihong, 

I wanted to confirm our receipt of your correspondence dated October 28 and request for materials 
relating to our legal complaints concerning Rockview and Shamrock. 

I am just back from an extended trip to the Pacific Northwest and leave this week for Northern 
California.  Unfortunately, I will not be able to put together any of these materials until I return. 

Either while I am on the road, or after I get back, I will give you a call to touch base so I can outline 
the type of material I have and mutually decide on the best way to get it to you. 

In the one of our 11 complaints that was fully adjudicated (most were closed with no investigation 
taking place whatsoever) AMS compliance staff met with us to take sworn statements in addition to 
picking up documents.  We would be most open to meeting with you or other compliance officers in 
that regard. 

Sincerely yours, 

Mark A. Kastel 
Codirector 
The Cornucopia Institute 

Mark A. Kastel
The Cornucopia Institute
kastel@cornucopia.org
608-625-2042 Voice
866-861-2214 Fax
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P.O. Box 126
Cornucopia, Wisconsin 54827

www.cornucopia.org



November 7, 2008 

Ruihong Guo 
United States Department of Agriculture 
Agricultural Marketing Service 
1400 Independence Ave., S.W. 
Room 4003, STOP 0268 
Washington, DC  20250-0268 

Re: NOPC-003-09 

Dear Ms. Guo, 

On October 24, 2008 QAI received a letter from the USDA dated October 21, 2008 
regarding the QAI Certified operation Shamrock Farms.  The letter outlines allegations that 
Shamrock Farms is violating 7 CFR 205.237(a); 205.238(a)(3) and (4); and 205.239(a)(1) 
and (2); and (b)(1)(2)(3) and (4). 

Shamrock Farms is currently going through their annual renewal process.  Upon receipt of 
their complete renewal documentation QAI will schedule their annual inspection and conduct 
a full investigation into the complaints received.  QAI has contacted Shamrock Farms and 
have asked them to submit their renewal as soon as possible as to expedite the inspection 
process.  Shamrock Farms has an anniversary date of March 27, 2009. 

Shamrock Farms was inspected on April 1, 2008, after review of that inspection report there 
was no indication that there was any questions as to the organic integrity of this operation.
However, QAI takes all such allegation seriously.  Upon completion of the inspection we will 
review the report at QAI and if warranted issue notice of non-compliance, proposed 
suspension and/or proposed revocation.  QAI will provide the USDA with the full findings of 
our investigation.  If the full investigation in not completed by January 30, 2009, QAI will 
submit an update to the USDA on the current progress. 

I hope this letter fulfills all your questions at this time.  Please note that this contains 
confidential and proprietary information that should not be communicated to any third party, 
including but not limited to the original complainant to the USDA.  Please let me know if you 
require any additional information. 

Regards,

Maria DeVincenzo 
Quality Specialist 

Cc: Barbara Robinson 













From: DeVincenzo, Maria
To: Schmale, Valerie
Cc: Guo, Ruihong
Subject: Conference call request
Date: Thursday, February 25, 2010 2:56:56 PM

Hi Valerie,

We were wondering if you and Ruihong would be available for another conference
 call?  Early tomorrow or Monday morning, we would like to go over QAI's proposed
 settlement agreement to Shamrock.
I look forward to your response.  Thanks so much.

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com



From: Schmale, Valerie
To: Joe Smillie (jsmillie@qai-inc.com)
Cc: Guo, Ruihong; Schmale, Valerie
Subject: Shamrock Farms Dairy - Investigation
Date: Wednesday, October 22, 2008 1:21:40 PM
Attachments: Schmale Valerie.vcf

Shamrock Dairy-QAI.pdf
image002.jpg

Importance: High

Dear Joe Smillie:

Please find attached a .pdf copy of a letter you will be receiving via Fed Ex.  The letter is
 regarding Shamrock Farms Dairy.

Thanks,
Val



Review of Inspector Report Dated November 12, 2008. 

l
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From: DeVincenzo, Maria
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock unannounced inspection report
Date: Monday, January 04, 2010 12:47:39 PM

You are welcome

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

From: Schmale, Valerie [mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov] 
Sent: Monday, January 04, 2010 9:38 AM
To: DeVincenzo, Maria
Subject: RE: Shamrock unannounced inspection report

Thanks Maria!

From: DeVincenzo, Maria [mailto:Maria@qai-inc.com] 
Sent: Monday, January 04, 2010 12:23 PM
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: Shamrock unannounced inspection report

Hi Valerie,

Here is the complete inspection report and attachments.

I am sending some photos in a separate email

Regards,

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com





From: Schmale, Valerie
To: "DeVincenzo, Maria"
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms Dairy
Date: Wednesday, December 23, 2009 2:25:12 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg
Importance: High

Hi Maria,

I am writing to see if a copy of the inspector’s report and attachments could be
 forwarded to me from the December 15, 2009 unannounced inspection?

I hope you have a wonderful holiday and a Happy New Year.

Thanks,
Val

From: DeVincenzo, Maria [mailto:Maria@qai-inc.com] 
Sent: Monday, December 14, 2009 1:40 PM
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms Dairy
 
Hi Valerie,

I hope that you had a nice weekend.

I just wanted to inform you that QAI has assigned an inspector to do an unannounced
 inspection of Shamrock Farms, the inspection is scheduled to be performed
 tomorrow, December 15, 2009.

Regards,

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

From: Schmale, Valerie [mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 11, 2009 7:53 AM
To: DeVincenzo, Maria
Cc: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms Dairy
Importance: High



Hi Maria,

We’ve reviewed and discussed the file from QAI regarding Shamrock Farms. QAI performed
an inspection in November 2008 as a result of the complaint that was filed by Cornucopia on
October 14, 2008. The NOP recommends that QAI perform an unannounced inspection of
Shamrock Farms immediately. NOP believes it is beneficial to know if Shamrock Farms is
providing the organic herd access to pasture when they do not know an inspector is coming to
review their practices. An unannounced inspection would strengthen QAI’s case that
Shamrock has not violated the regulations as alleged by Cornucopia.

Sincerely,
Val Schmale

From: DeVincenzo, Maria [mailto:Maria@qai-inc.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2009 6:40 PM
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms Dairy
 
Hi Valerie,

Please see my responses to your questions below.

Regards,

Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 200-9727 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

From: Schmale, Valerie [mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2009 11:40 AM
To: DeVincenzo, Maria
Subject: Shamrock Farms Dairy
Importance: High

Maria,

Good afternoon.  I have a few more questions for you Maria regarding this case.

1.     I need to know if QAI performed any announced or unannounced inspections at Shamrock
 Farms Dairy in 2009.  





From: Guo, Ruihong
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: can we meet quickly on Shamrock?
Date: Friday, May 14, 2010 10:47:25 AM

 
 
Ruihong Guo
Director
Compliance & Enforcement Division
National Organic Program
United States Department of Agriculture
 



From: Schmale, Valerie
To: "DeVincenzo, Maria"
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms attachment-
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2009 2:11:12 PM

Received

From: DeVincenzo, Maria [mailto:Maria@qai-inc.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 30, 2009 2:01 PM
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: Shamrock Farms attachment-

Hi Valerie,

Attached is a copy of the investigative inspection report.

Maria
Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 792-3531 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com







 
 
 
 
October 12, 2008 
TO:  David Trykowski, NOP Compliance, USDA 
RE:  Complaint concerning multiple violations of the National Organic Program’s  
         regulatory standards by Shamrock Farms headquartered in Phoenix, AZ   
 
 
Dear Mr Trykowski, 
 
The Cornucopia Institute is filing this formal complaint with your office concerning possible 
violations of National Organic Program (NOP) regulatory standards governing ruminants (dairy 
cows) by the Shamrock Farms dairy south of Phoenix, AZ.  We are asking that you fully 
investigate this complaint to determine whether violations of NOP regulatory standards have 
occurred, are occurring, or will occur.   
 
We are willing to share with your investigators all of the factual evidence we have directly 
gathered from our site visit to the Shamrock Farms facility.  At the conclusion of your 
investigation, we ask that you take all warranted enforcement actions to bring this dairy operation 
into compliance with NOP rules in a timely fashion or to decertify and/or fine the operator, if 
appropriate.     
 
If the allegations we have gathered are proven to have merit, we believe that there is a reasonable 
basis to conclude that the Shamrock Farms Dairy is violating the following provisions of the NOP 
regulations: 
 

Subpart C 
§ 205.237 Livestock feed. 
 

(a) The producer of an organic livestock operation must provide livestock with a 
total feed ration composed of agricultural products, including pasture and 
forage, that are organically produced and, if applicable, organically handled … 
(emphasis added) 

 
and 
 

§ 205.238 Livestock health care practice standard 

(a) The producer must establish and maintain preventive livestock health care 
practices, including: 

(3) Establishment of appropriate housing, pasture conditions, and sanitation 
practices to minimize the occurrence and spread of diseases and parasites;   



(4) Provision of conditions which allow for exercise, freedom of movement, 
and reduction of stress appropriate to the species; 

and     

      § 205.239 Livestock living conditions. 

(a) The producer of an organic livestock operation must establish and maintain 
livestock living conditions which accommodate the health and natural behavior of 
animals, including: 

(1) Access to the outdoors, shade, shelter, exercise areas, fresh air, and 
direct sunlight suitable to the species, its stage of production, the climate, 
and the environment;  
(2) Access to pasture for ruminants; 
 

(b) The producer of an organic livestock operation may provide temporary 
confinement for an animal because of:  
 

(1) Inclement weather;  
(2) The animal's stage of production; 
(3) Conditions under which the health, safety, or well being of the animal 
could be jeopardized; or 
(4) Risk to soil or water quality. 

 
 
Regarding the Shamrock Farms dairy operation, The Cornucopia Institute contends that the 
feedlot facility does not provide sufficient pasture for their dairy herd numbering approximately 
11,000 head, of which 700-1000 are being "managed" organically.   
 
Staff from The Cornucopia Institute visited and directly observed the Shamrock operation in April 
2008.  Then 100% of the dairy herd was confined to the facility’s feedlot and, according to dairy 
staff, had not been out on their substandard pasture acreage for a matter of weeks.  This fails the 
standard established under NOP regulation § 205.239. Terms defined: 
 

Pasture.  Land used for livestock grazing that is managed to provide feed value and 
maintain or improve soil, water, and vegetative resources.   
 

Stocking levels of 5-10 cows per acre do not meet universally acceptable grazing standards. 
 

The Cornucopia Institute recognizes that certified organic dairy operations can remove cows from 
pasture for temporary considerations based on weather, environmental, or health considerations, as 
noted above in § 205.239.  The Cornucopia Institute contends, however, that geographic or 
climatic conditions—which make pasture impractical or not cost-effective—cannot be used to 
justify year-round noncompliance with the pasture rule.  
 
In addition, The Cornucopia Institute requests that the USDA investigate whether or not the 
organic label may be used in the branded dairy products produced and marketed by Shamrock 
Farms.   



The following criteria stated in the national organic regulations should be used to make this 
determination: 
 

   Subpart D - Labels, Labeling, and Market Information 
    § 205.300 Use of the term, "organic." 
 

(a) The term, "organic," may only be used on labels and in labeling of raw or 
processed agricultural products, including ingredients, that have been produced and 
handled in accordance with the regulations in this part. The term, "organic," may 
not be used in a product name to modify a non-organic ingredient in the product. 

 
The Cornucopia Institute requests that the USDA investigate the applicability of this national 
organic regulation, should it be deemed appropriate: 

 
     Subpart B – Applicability 

     § 205.100 What has to be certified  
 

(c) Any operation that: 

(1) Knowingly sells or labels a product as organic, except in accordance 
with the Act, shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than $10,000 
per violation.  

(2) Makes a false statement under the Act to the Secretary, a governing 
State official, or an accredited certifying agent shall be subject to the 
provisions of section 1001 of title 18, United States Code. 

 
And finally, because of past widespread problems discovered by Cornucopia and the USDA at other 
CAFOs certified to produce organic milk, we strongly encourage the Department to meticulously 
scrutinize all documentation and practices related to the origin of livestock. 
 
The Shamrock Farms dairy plant has been most recently certified by Quality Assurance International, 
and their contact information is: 
 

9191 Towne Centre Dr., Suite 510 
San Diego, CA 92122 
Contact: Joe Smillie 
Phone: 858-792-3531 
E-mail: qai@qai-inc.com  

 
It is unclear who has organic certification responsibility for the livestock.  Neither information 
provided by the National Organic Program or the Shamrock Farms web page provide the level of 
transparency permitting the ability to discern this fact. 
 
Contact information for the Shamrock Farms dairy is: 
 

Shamrock Farms Dairy Division 
2228 N. Black Canyon Hwy. 
Phoenix, AZ 85009 
(602) 272-6721  



 
Please keep The Cornucopia Institute apprised of the status of and progress of your investigation into 
this formal complaint.  We take this matter very seriously.  Farmers who have made the difficult 
conversion to organics and consumers who are paying premium prices for organic foods rely upon 
the USDA and its approved certifying agents to uniformly and fairly enforce the nation’s organic law.   
 
Lastly, pursuant to Subpart C and the following provision: 
 

 § 205.680 General 

(a) Persons subject to the Act who believe they are adversely affected by a 
noncompliance decision of the National Organic Program's Program Manager 
may appeal such decision to the Administrator. 

The Cornucopia Institute requests that the USDA’s Office of Compliance make a timely, full, and 
good faith effort in their investigation of these allegations.  We do not convey these allegations 
frivolously—they are a serious matter.  And while the Institute lacks specific investigative powers 
possessed by the USDA (the ability to take sworn testimony, access certification documents, or 
subpoena relevant material), we expect the USDA to take these allegations seriously and conduct a 
meaningful investigation.   

In fact, failure to take such action will only encourage future scofflaws and corner cutting by 
organic operators, and will make a mockery of the federal organic regulations that are so diligently 
observed by the vast majority of participants in the nation’s organic agriculture and food sector. 

It should be noted that nothing in this formal complaint shall be interpreted as a waiver of our 
right to appeal under the Adverse Action Appeals Process cited above.   

You may contact us at your convenience. 
 
 
Sincerely,  

Will Fantle 
Director of Research 
715-839-7731 
wfantle@cornucopia.org 
 

 

(b)(6)

























From: Schmale, Valerie
To: Guo, Ruihong
Subject: shamrock
Date: Wednesday, June 16, 2010 8:43:01 AM
Attachments: Schmale Valerie.vcf

020510 Letter to Shamrock Farms.pdf
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Here’s a letter Maria sent giving them the final date of suspension.

 



From: DeVincenzo, Maria
To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms - report
Date: Wednesday, August 05, 2009 4:22:00 PM
Attachments: Shamrock Farms 112008 Inspec Report attachments.pdf

Shamrock Farm inspector photos 112008.pdf

Hi again,

This is the 2nd of 2 emails sent, hopefully you have received both.

Attached are the inspection report attachments and photos.

Please let me know if there is anything else you need.

Thanks.

Maria
Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 792-3531 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com

From: Schmale, Valerie [mailto:Valerie.Schmale@ams.usda.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 05, 2009 11:46 AM
To: DeVincenzo, Maria
Subject: RE: Shamrock Farms - report

Maria,

In reviewing the report, the attachments for the report itself are missing. Could those
attachments be forwarded to me?

Additionally, we do not have a copy of the OSP for Shamrock Dairy. As the report
refers back to various sections of the OSP, would it be possible to have that forwarded to
us electronically as well? We would also like a copy of the organic certification for
Shamrock.

Thanks,
Val

From: DeVincenzo, Maria [mailto:Maria@qai-inc.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 30, 2009 1:59 PM



To: Schmale, Valerie
Subject: Shamrock Farms - report

Valerie,

Attached is the final report from 12/10/08 regarding Shamrock Farms.
The attachments will follow in 2 additional emails.

Thanks.

Maria
Maria DeVincenzo
Quality Specialist
Quality Assurance International
9191 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 510
San Diego, CA  92122  USA
(858) 792-3531 Phone
(734) 827-6177 Fax
www.qai-inc.com



From: Schmale, Valerie
To: Maria@qai-inc.com
Subject: Re: Shamrock Farms NOPC-003-09
Date: Monday, November 10, 2008 11:15:00 AM
Attachments: Schmale Valerie.vcf

Shamrock Dairy - QAI re 11 7 08 letter.pdf
image002.jpg

Dear Maria DeVincenzo:

Please see attached and advance copy of the NOP’s response to your letter of November 7,
 2008.  You will be receiving a copy via Federal Express.

Thanks,
Val


